
SAMPLE HISTORY: Texas in World War II 
 

Note: This sample history, comprised of fictional information, represents in format, scope of content, 

documentation and length the type of narrative history required for a historical marker application. It is 

presented as a general guide for developing a narrative for Texas in World  

War II. 

 

LANGUID ARMY AIR FIELD 
 

I.  CONTEXT 

 

During World War II, the U.S. Army Air Forces (AAF) built Languid Army Air Field, an 

Advanced Pilot Training School, roughly seven miles northeast of Jergenson.  Located in the northeast 

corner of Post Oak County, the airfield utilized the surrounding flat prairie land as part of its training 

mission.  In historic times, the area experienced little development; however, during the Reconstruction 

era following the Civil War, the U.S. Army experimented with a series of Signal Flag Corps ranges in the 

area.  The Army discontinued the signal flag ranges in 1890 when the military cut federal funding for the 

project after the local need for such facilities diminished with new technologies.  In 1891, Abe “Links” 

Froman bought the 1,200 acre tract from the military and utilized the land for pig farming.  In 1922, 

Froman moved his sausage business to Chicago, Illinois, and the land went unused until the late 1930s, 

when local Jergenson citizens began a movement for a regional airport.
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II. OVERVIEW 

 In 1919, the first recorded airplane flight over Post Oak County occurred when Kerry Chandler, a 

U.S. Army Aero Corps pilot flew his JN-4 “Jenny” aircraft over the town of Turnbuckle.  Chandler, 

disoriented by a significant cloud bank, flew nearly 40 miles off course while conducting flight training 

exercises for the Army.  Chandler’s errant flight captured the imagination of a 20-year-old Jergenson 

resident named John McCoy, who was in Turnbuckle on a business trip, and spurred him toward a love of 

flying.  Nineteen years later, in May 1938, McCoy’s efforts as president of the Jergenson Chamber of 



Commerce led to the establishment of a Civilian Aeronautics Administration (CAA) funded airport in 

Post Oak County.
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 The Great Depression had a particularly devastating effect on the citizens of Jergenson and the 

farmers of east Post Oak County.  Many residents found the lack of good roads a major difficulty, and 

farmers struggled to move their crops efficiently toward major markets to the east.  Furthermore, many of 

the young people in the county began to leave in increasingly larger numbers, as they sought job 

opportunities across Texas and the United States.  The economic misfortune of east Post Oak County’s 

susceptibility to the Great Depression nearly ended many long established families’ abilities to continue 

to survive in the region.  However, in 1936, the misfortunes gave way to increased hope for local 

economic development.  U.S. Congressman Ben Mathey utilized his political clout to influence 

significant New Deal projects in the hardest hit county in his district.  That year, the Works Progress 

Administration (WPA) and the Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) both began construction projects that 

led to economic recovery and eventually a need for a regional airport.  The more significant of the two, 

the WPA project created new federal buildings in Jergenson for a modern regional U.S. Post Office 

collection and distribution center.  This new facility was the centralized postal center for Post Oak County 

and the surrounding ten counties.  The Lehman Regional Federal Postal Collection and Distribution 

Office created more than three hundred new government jobs for the residents of Post Oak County and 

eventually led to the need for a regional air facility to cope with the increasing demand for the delivery of 

mail to the region.
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  Although the Lehman postal center created some limited economic recovery for Jergenson and 

east Post Oak County, the strain on the county’s transportation facilities (a network of highways and the 

Texas and Natchez Railroad Line) had begun to limit the growth and constrain the efficiency of the postal 

center.  Fearing a decline in productivity and possibly a cut in potential future jobs, the citizens of 

Jergenson, led by John McCoy, contacted Congressman Mathey about the possibility of establishing a 

CAA airport facility near Jergenson to accommodate the growth of the Lehman postal center.  McCoy’s 

love for airplanes and desire to assist his beloved community led to a substantial grassroots effort to 



solicit a new federal project in Post Oak County.  The citizens of Post Oak County hoped the construction 

and establishment of a new regional airport would provide a third transportation medium for the regional 

postal center, create more jobs for county residents and hopefully lead toward new economic viability for 

a county trying to pull itself out of the Great Depression.
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In 1938, the storm clouds of a new war formed in Europe and Asia and threatened global peace. 

All the while, memories of the “War to End All Wars” (World War I) were still fresh in the minds and 

hearts of many Americans.  Nevertheless, reality for many Americans was that sooner or later, America 

would be involved.  The United States War Department and the Franklin D. Roosevelt Administration 

knew that American forces were deficient in the tools and training of modern war.  As a result, President 

Roosevelt, in preparation for the possibility of war, directed federal funds toward the financing of new 

municipal airport construction projects across the nation as part of the country’s war-preparedness 

program.  Congressman Mathey contacted the CAA offices in Washington D.C. in June 1938, and once 

again his effective political clout garnered federal funds toward an airport project in Post Oak County.
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On November 3, 1938, CAA officials arrived in Jergenson and conducted a survey of the 

proposed airport site.  Two months earlier, McCoy’s financial security enabled him to purchase the 

former Froman tract from Krista MacDonald, who inherited the land from her uncle Abe Froman in 1926.  

Of significant note, in 1928, an enterprising young Post Oak County resident, Amy Cockreham, 

purchased a portion of the MacDonald land in an attempt to establish a hunting and fishing camp with a 

grand lodge.  However, her funds evaporated as the Great Depression’s grip tightened on the country and 

her vision never materialized. The land she purchased defaulted to MacDonald.  Interestingly, Cockreham 

volunteered for the U.S. Army Nursing Corps following her failed enterprise and eventually served in 

France during World War II.  Cited for bravery while attending to wounded near the front line, 

Cockreham returned to America after the war and pursued a career in medicine.
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In 1939, eleven years after purchasing the 1,200 acre tract from MacDonald, McCoy donated the 

land to Post Oak County as a selfless contribution toward improving the viability of his beloved county. 

After reviewing the viability of the McCoy tract, CAA officials communicated their recommendations for 



the new air facility to Congressman Mathey.  On June 4, 1939, Congressman Mathey telephoned McCoy 

to inform him that construction would begin on the new airport facility within the year. As part of the 

increased war preparedness effort on the part of the federal government, work began on the new airport 

on December 19, 1939, when Acme Power & Light Company extended utility lines from the city along 

U.S. Highway 190 toward the airfield and construction of a paved road linked the highway northward to 

the airfield.  The airport’s main contractor was the Houston firm of Wadham and Filardi, who had 

previously constructed similar airport projects.  Workers pushed the airport’s construction forward 

rapidly, clearing the 1,200 acres of trees and brush.  On February 1, 1940, the Jergenson Vindicator 

reported that the new airport was, “similar to a young city teeming with activity and is giving Post Oak 

County carpenters and other craftsmen an abundance of work.”  The project eventually employed more 

than 250 local workers in the construction of the airfield and another 75 in road and utility construction.  

Named Kinney Airport in honor of Jon P. Kinney, an early Post Oak County settler and distant relative of 

McCoy, the airport opened on May 16, 1940.
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 The history of Kinney Airport was brief, from May 1940 until America’s entry into World War II 

the following year. The airport nevertheless steadily increased the efficient distribution of postal cargo out 

of the Lehman postal center, while increasingly opening up Post Oak County to outside visitors.  On 

December 8, 1941 (the day the U.S. declared war on Japan), the airport, which had its roots in the need to 

increase productivity of the regional postal service, prepared to take on a new role.  The AAF, in a 

desperate race to locate and establish sites for flying training activities, looked across the nation for 

suitable locations for new Army airfields.  Kinney Airport offered exactly what the military needed 

during the desperate early days of World War II—an established air facility away from major cities and 

mountains with open vistas that would enable the rapid training of pilots to meet America’s urgent war 

needs.
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 On December 19, AAF officials, led by Major Apple White arrived in Jergenson on an official 

fact finding trip.  After meeting with McCoy and other city officials, the AAF officers returned to 

Washington D.C. to report to the War Department.  Three days later on December 22, the War 



Department officially accepted the Jergenson offer to lease the air facility to the military for $1 per year 

until the conclusion of hostilities.  On January 1, 1942, Congressman Mathey and the widow of Texas 

State Senator Roberto Languid (who vigorously supported state legislation for the growth of civil aviation 

in Texas) publicly announced on the steps of the Post Oak County Courthouse the government’s plans to 

covert the civilian air facility into an Army airfield.  The Army created housing for 3,000 to 4,000 

personnel and services for nearly 800 trainer aircraft and fifty P-40 fighter planes.  The 106th Advanced 

Flight Training Command utilized AT-6 “Texan” trainers, which arrived from Cleburne Army Air Field 

and Arlington Field.  Languid Army Air Field’s mission meant that the facilities, even with planned 

expansions, were not sufficient to handle the training mission and number of aircraft.  As a result, the 

Army began construction on three auxiliary landing fields to help accommodate the overflow of trainer 

aircraft from Languid Air Field and to provide cadets the requisite space to practice landing and night 

flying exercises.  The AAF named the largest field—McCoy Field (located 25 miles due south of 

Languid)—in honor of John McCoy’s early support of aviation in the region.  The AAF named the other 

two fields Dobesh (8 miles northwest of Languid) and Dubois (33 miles southwest of Languid); no 

specific reason for these names has been discovered to this date.
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In all, Languid Army Air Field graduated 23 flying classes, or approximately 5,700 highly 

qualified advanced fighter pilots, who saw action across the skies of Europe and the South Pacific.  

Languid Army Air Field hosted female and minority units while in service.  A contingent of the Women’s 

Army Corps (WAC) arrived in early 1943, and worked in the hospital and administrative offices of the 

106th Sub Depot Air and Service Command. In 1944, a contingent of Women Airforce Service Pilots 

(WASP) arrived as well.  During their time at Languid Army Air Field, the female test pilots trained for 

the purpose of ferrying new planes to deployment centers along the U.S. coast.  The military also 

recruited local Post Oak County women to work at the airfield.  The women received 60 days training in 

welding, wood millwork and hydraulics, and went to work in local industries. Due to the restrictions of 

the then-segregated military, the African American soldiers assigned to Languid Army Air Field primarily 



served in the transportation platoon. Most eventually served overseas, though, providing important 

support for the military front in Europe.
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Between Languid Army Air Field and its three satellite auxiliary fields, the military built a city of 

500, roughly half the size of Royville, in less than a year.  According to Nathan Spears, a teenage resident 

of Jergenson during World War II, in his 2001 book, A History of Kinney Airport-Languid Army Air 

Field, During the Second World War, “the construction jobs at Languid came as a welcome relief to 

unemployed workers in Post Oak County.”  Nevertheless, the assurance of an Allied victory in Europe 

marked the beginning of the end for Languid Army Air Field as an active military training facility.  In 

June 1945, the AAF reassigned Languid’s Commanding Officer, Colonel Trent Hagar, to an overseas 

assignment in the Pacific, and Colonel Credius G. Purdy assumed command.  The military placed 

Languid Army Air Field on stand-by status until the AAF determined its future role, and as they did with 

many airfields across the Lone Star State and across the nation toward the end of the war, the AAF 

eventually deactivated the base.  Languid Army Air Field official closed on July 15, 1945.  In November, 

Congressman Mathey assisted Post Oak County by gaining authorization for the airfield’s conversion 

back to local civilian use.  After the war, the site attracted aircraft-oriented industry to the town for many 

years.  Several businesses and a flying school quickly sprouted up after the war, and in 1952 the Texas 

Flying Industries Company, an aircraft rebuilding outfit, leased a portion of the airport, which later under 

the name of Marion Systems Inc. remained the single largest employer in Post Oak County for years.  In 

the book Texas and the United States Army Air Forces during World War II, historian Marcus Homburg 

stated, “the army airfield that ultimately emerged from the initially modest project proved to be a critical 

turning point in [Jergenson’s] history, reshaping and improving its economy forever.”
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III.  SIGNIFICANCE 

Kinney Airport, later Languid Army Air Field, played a pivotal role in the economic development 

of Jergenson and Post Oak County. With historic ties dating to the years of the Great Depression, the air 

field was a source of employment for many years. On a broader scale, it reflected the U.S. war 



preparedness effort at the local level, a story told in similar communities across the state and nation 

during World War II. Many of the individuals associated with the field, both civilian and military 

personnel, eventually made their homes in Post Oak County. As a training base, Languid was a significant 

element in the federal pilot training program.  Pilots and units that trained at the field served with 

distinction overseas. 

Many foundations of Languid Army Air Field’s buildings remain in evidence today, as do the air 

field’s taxiway and its original primary runway.  Although the present day airport uses a longer runway to 

accommodate jet aircraft, the remains of the once mighty Army air field remain visible to the educated or 

persistent observer.  Of special note, one of the air field’s original World War II era buildings remains.  

Service Hangar #2 is located on the southwest corner of the taxiway and in 2006 serves as a storage 

facility. Nevertheless, the hangar still casts an imposing shadow of the once great Army Air Forces 

experience in Texas during World War II.
12 

 

 

 

VI. DOCUMENTATION 

1 
Smith, Jim, ed. “Abe ‘Link’ Froman,” The Texana Handbook. Austin: Smith Texana Publishers, 1999. 

Vol. 14, pp. 1-4. 

 
2 
Smith, “Jergenson,” The Texana Handbook, Vol. 12, p. 23. 

 
3 
Prater, Elihu, Beyond the Rim: A History of Early Post Oak County, Jergenson: Post Oak County 

Historical Commission, 1978, pp. 139-144. 

 
4 
Prater, 139-144; Bueche, Trey. Interview with Bryan Leaf, October 8, 2005, tape and transcript in 

possession of interviewer, a resident of Jergenson. Leaf worked in the motor pool at Languid Army Air 

Field, 1944-45. 

 
5 
Hack, Ted, U.S. Army Air Forces, Leakey, Texas: Ruthrauffer Publishing, pp. 210-213. 

 
6 
Prater, 76-79. 

 
7 
Bathon, Collen, “Jergenson’s role in World War II,” Jergenson Vindicator, November 9, 1968. Section 

C,  

p. 1. 

  
8 
Prater, 323 



 
9 
Bathon, “Jergenson’s Role in World War II,” 2 

 
10 

Spears, Nathan, A History of Kinney Airport-Languid Army Air Field, during the Second World War, 

Mission, Texas: University of Texas Light and Industry Press, 2001, p. 36 

 
11 

Homburg, Marcus, Texas and the United States Army Air Forces during World War II, Kyle, Texas: 

Texas State University Press, 2003, pp. 198, 201 and 223. 

 
12 

Bueche, Trey. Interview with Allison McCoy, John McCoy’s daughter, October 9, 2005. Tape and 

transcript in possession of interviewer. 

 

 




